
CC Minutes 11‐19‐13 

  1 

   City of Washington Terrace 2 

_________________________________________________ 3 

Minutes of a Regular City Council meeting 4 

held on November 19, 2013 5 

City Hall, 5249 South 400 East, Washington Terrace City, 6 

County of Weber, State of Utah 7 

                      8 

MAYOR, COUNCIL, AND STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT 9 
Mayor Mark C. Allen 10 

Council Member Mary Johnston 11 

Council Member Blair Brown- Excused 12 

Council Member Robert Jensen                   13 

Council Member Scott Monsen 14 

Council Member Val Shupe            15 

City Manager Tom Hanson 16 

City Recorder Amy Rodriguez 17 

Public Works Director Steve Harris 18 

Human Resources Director Laura Gamon 19 

Lt. Kevin Burns, Weber County Sheriff Office 20 

 21 

Others Present 22 
Charles and Reba Allen, Jeremiah Grishman, Cythas Moore, Will Peterson, Ulis Gardiner, Rob 23 

Bullen, Austin Campbell 24 
                                    25 
 26 
1.     ROLL CALL                                                  6:00 P.M 27 

 28 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 29 
Eagle Scout Austin Campbell led the Pledge of Allegiance. 30 

 31 

3. WELCOME 32 

 33 

4...     CONSENT ITEMS 34 

 35 

4.1 APPROVAL OF AGENDA 36 

       4.2 APPROVAL OF OCTOBER 15, 2013, MEETING MINUTES       37 
Items 4.1 and 4.2 approved by general consent. 38 

 39 

 5.     CITIZEN COMMENTS 40 
Resident Jackie Belden -365 W. 4675 S. - stated that she does not like the way the water bills are 41 

designed in regards to the due date. She was asking Council to look at the design and see if there 42 

is a cleaner, more clear way to design the bill so residents can easily see due dates and past due 43 

amounts.  44 

 45 

 46 



CC Minutes 11‐19‐13 

 6.    COUNCIL/STAFF RESPONSE AND CONSIDERATION TO CITIZEN 47 

       COMMENTS 48 
Hanson stated that he appreciates Ms. Belden’s appropriate response with Council. He stated that 49 

the bill design has recently been revised to be more user friendly; however the layout design may 50 

be revisited again. Hanson explained the shut-off process and how notices are sent. Hanson 51 

stated that staff is open to revising the bill to be user-friendly. 52 

Gamon stated that she will review the process to make sure that a notice was sent to Ms. Belden. 53 

She also explained how and why the late fee notices are generated. She stated that the 54 

department allows for residents to call and make payment arrangements. She stated that she 55 

appreciates the feedback from Ms. Belden and will review the layout of the bill. 56 

 57 

 7.    NEW BUSINESS 58 

       59 

7.1  DISCUSSION/MOTION: ADOPT POLICY AND PROCEDURES MANUAL  60 
Hanson stated that the manual is updated and reviewed every two years to allow for Council 61 

directions or new legislation. Gamon stated that the summary of changes was sent to Council. 62 

She noted that one of the highlights was the Leave of Absence section of the manual. Council 63 

Member Shupe stated that he is not in favor of taking a day of sick leave that belongs to the city 64 

and turning it over to the employee. He stated that vacation days belong to the employee, while 65 

sick days belong to the city. He suggested that excess days could be signed over to the city in a 66 

bank that they would be able to draw from later on if they need the time. He suggested an 67 

employee’s board to monitor the bank. Gamon stated that the days would not be transferred until 68 

after an employee’s anniversary date.  Hanson explained that the policy currently allows for him 69 

to extend leave for specific individuals for a specific time for a specific reason. He stated that the 70 

goal is not to have rollover leave, but in rare circumstances it could be worked out specifically 71 

for an employee that meets the guidelines.  Council Member Johnston stated that many 72 

companies do not label sick and vacation days, noting that they give employees an amount of 73 

days and they can choose to use them as they please. She stated that it is an incentive for people 74 

to use their days. Gamon stated that the policy and procedures committee can discuss PTO days 75 

in the next review. 76 

Gamon stated that a Driver Qualification policy was added to the policy as recommended by 77 

ULGT. She stated that it is a risk management issue. Council Member Jensen asked how the city 78 

would find out if someone loses their license. Gamon stated that the employee is to let the city 79 

know within 48 hours. She noted that a report is run once a year to verify everyone is safe to 80 

drive. 81 

 82 

Motion by Council Member Shupe 83 

Seconded by Council Member Johnston 84 

To approve the Policy and Procedures manual with the changes as indicated that are 85 

based on changes to be made in regards with the deletion of vacation days transferring 86 

over to sick days and continue with policy that vacation can be extended 87 

By the City Manager based on extenuating circumstances 88 

Approved unanimously (4-0) 89 

 90 

7.2  PRESENTATION: SHERIFF’S OFFICE MONTHLY REPORT 91 
Lt. Burns stated that the month has been fairly steady.  He noted that the sex offender registry 92 



CC Minutes 11‐19‐13 

has been re-assigned to the School Resource Officers.  Council Member Shupe stated that he 93 

would like to see the investigative reports. Lt. Burns stated that he will send that out to Council. 94 

Lt. Burns highlighted some of the community policing efforts that have been taking place.  Lt. 95 

Burns stated that narcotic stops are starting to slowly rise. 96 

Council Member Shupe stated that he recently had to contact the office concerning election sign 97 

problems that he had been having. He stated that he had no problems finding any officers and 98 

would like for Burns to pass on his appreciation to the officers that helped him, stating that they 99 

were on top of the situation. 100 

 101 

7.3  DISCUSSION/MOTION: APPROVAL OF EXTENSION FOR THE  102 

     JANITORIAL CONTRACT REGARDING THE CIVIC/SENIOR CENTER 103 
Hanson explained that the Smiths have been very good to work with. He stated that the city 104 

chose not to go out to bid, but rather to extend the contract for one more year. 105 

 106 

Motion by Council Member Jensen 107 

Seconded by Council Member Monsen 108 

To approve the extension of the Janitorial Contract 109 

Approved unanimously (4-0) 110 

 111 

       7.4   MOTION/ORDINANCE 13-07: WINTER PARKING PERMIT  112 

             AMENDMENT        113 
Hanson stated that Council had eliminated the permitting section of the ordinance however it was 114 

not taken out of the ordinance. The amendments would take the language about permitting out of 115 

the ordinance. 116 

Council Member Shupe stated that he would like the ordinance to specifically state where people 117 

can or cannot park on soft surfaces. He wants area designations to make it clearer to residents. 118 

He stated that he does not feel that people who have large driveways need to park on soft 119 

surfaces. Hanson stated that it is a challenge to designate areas by streets due to the city layout, 120 

but it may be possible to designate by zone or square footage. Council Member Monsen stated 121 

that it can be made simple by stating a specific size driveway (single, double, etc.) so that it will 122 

be clear to residents. He stated that the city is making it more complicated than it needs to be. 123 

Council Member Johnston stated that there are too many variances to this policy. Hanson stated 124 

that the city is trying to keep code enforcement up to speed and keep yards nice. Mayor Allen 125 

suggested that all residents should be able to park on the grass because it is hard to draw a line. 126 

He suggested making the policy blanket across the whole city. Council Member Shupe stated 127 

that he is fine with blanketing city. He directed staff to put the information in the newsletter so 128 

that residents are aware. 129 

 130 

Motion by Council Member Shupe 131 

Seconded by Council Member Jensen 132 

to approve the 133 

Amendment to the Winter Parking Ordinance 134 

Approved unanimously (4-0) 135 

Roll Call Vote 136 

 137 

       7.5   DISCUSSION/MOTION: APPROVAL OF STONEHENGE 5600 SOUTH  138 



CC Minutes 11‐19‐13 

             PARTIAL ROAD DEDICATION AND BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT 139 
Hanson stated that Stonehenge Facility will need to widen the road by the library and South 140 

Ogden shops. As part of their project, Stonehenge will be putting in the infrastructure.  141 

Hanson stated that the city will be inspecting the development to make sure that everything is 142 

built to specifications. 143 

Motion by Council Member Johnston 144 

Seconded by Council Member Jensen 145 

to approve Stonehenge 5600 South partial 146 

road dedication and boundary adjustment 147 

Approved unanimously (4-0) 148 

             149 

       7.6   DISCUSSION: POSSIBLE AMENDMENTS TO THE SIGN ORDINANCE  150 

             REGARDING POLITICAL SIGNS 151 
Hanson stated that there has been a lot of feedback from residents concerning campaign signs. 152 

He stated that the city is aware that political free speech is protected. Hanson stated that many 153 

candidates are cooperative with city ordinances concerning sign restrictions. He stated that some 154 

of the recommendations that he has heard from other cities is 30 days before an election and 155 

removal of signs 5 days after.  He stated that if someone challenges the ordinances, the city can 156 

allow for them to put up their signs. Council Member Monsen stated that there is no point to 157 

change anything if we are going to change it back if someone challenges. Council Member 158 

Johnston stated that our ordinance was originally changed to accommodate for state legislatures 159 

who wanted to have signs up for a longer period of time. She noted that it was not worth the fight 160 

with the state legislatures. Council Member Jensen stated that as a candidate and as a resident he 161 

would appreciate the 30 days rule back. He also noted that there should be a stipulation of one 162 

sign per candidate per yard.  Council Member Shupe and the Mayor agreed that the 30 days 163 

before and 5 days after rule should be established with not more than one sign per candidate per 164 

yard. Council Member Johnston stated that she had received a lot of complaints concerning the 165 

signs this year and stated that a timeline would be appreciated by the residents and candidates 166 

alike.  167 

The direction from Council was to formalize the ordinance changes. 168 

 169 

7.7   MOTION: BOARD OF CANVASS TO APPROVE THE 2013 MUNICIPAL   170 

             ELECTION CANVASS RESULTS 171 
Rodriguez stated that the final canvass was completed at noon on November 19, 2013. She read 172 

the results of the canvass as follows: 173 

For Mayor- Warren A. Vaughn 413    Mark C. Allen 643 174 

For Council Member- Val Shupe 729    Robert C. Jensen 656    Andrew Gibby 578. 175 

 176 

The Council serves as the Board of Canvass. The results will be forwarded to the Lt. Governor’s 177 

office. 178 

Motion by Council Member Johnston 179 

Seconded by Council Shupe  180 

To approve the 2013 Municipal Election Canvass Results 181 

Approved unanimously (4-0) 182 

 183 

 184 



CC Minutes 11‐19‐13 

8.     COUNCIL COMMUNICATION WITH STAFF 185 
        * Council Member Jensen inquired about the shut off process as a review for Council. 186 

Hanson stated that there is a window that favors the residents but there is not a specific number 187 

of days between sending a late notice and shut-off. He stated that notices are not required but is 188 

done as a customer service. Hanson stated that a bill is sent to residents, a late notice is sent, and 189 

a door hangar is placed once the service is shut off. He stated that the procedure has been 190 

consistent over the years.  191 

         * Council Member Shupe commented that Rodriguez had election information 192 

available and was able to answer questions that he had. 193 

        * Mayor Allen stated that the clock tower time did not change for daylight savings. He 194 

also inquired on the fall clean-up and progress on Adams Avenue. Harris stated that the work on 195 

Adams Avenue is getting close to completion.  196 

       197 

9.      ADMINISTRATION REPORTS 198 
Hanson stated that the adjustments will be made to the clock tower. 199 

Hanson noted that the eves on the building have been replaced with LED lighting.  200 

Hanson reminded Council about the retreat this Saturday.  201 

Staff will be participating in emergency training tomorrow for web EOC as part of the 202 

emergency planning grant. 203 

Hanson stating that he will put out a request for historical pictures of the city.  204 

 205 

10.     UPCOMING EVENTS           206 

       November 21st: Planning Commission Meeting 6:00 p.m. 207 

       November 23rd: City Council Annual Retreat held at Utah Local Governments  208 

                        Trust Building in North Salt Lake 209 

       November 28-29: City Offices closed for Thanksgiving holiday 210 

       December 3rd: City Council Meeting 6:00 p.m. 211 

       212 

11.     ADJOURN THE MEETING: MAYOR ALLEN 213 
Mayor Allen adjourned the meeting at 7:32 p.m. 214 

 215 

 216 

______________________________            ________________________________ 217 

Date Approved                                City Recorder 218 


